
 

Democratic Service 
Swyddfa’r Cyngor 

CAERNARFON 
Gwynedd 
LL55 1SH 

 

 

 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 
 

  
 

Meeting 
 

LANGUAGE COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
2.00 pm, TUESDAY, 27TH FEBRUARY, 2018 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Ystafell Glyder Fawr, Council Offices, Penrallt, Caernarfon, Gwynedd. LL55 1BN 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Sioned Williams 

01286 672729 

sionedwilliams3@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

(DISTRIBUTED 21/02/18) 

Complete Agenda

http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/


 

LANGUAGE COMMITTEE 
 

MEMBERSHIP (15) 
 
 

Plaid Cymru (8) 
 

Councillors 
 

Elwyn Edwards Alan Jones Evans 
Aled Ll. Evans Judith Mary Humphreys 

Elin Walker Jones Olaf Cai Larsen 
Elfed Williams Charles Wyn Jones 

 
 

Independent (5) 
 

Councillors 
 

Elwyn Jones Eric M. Jones 
Kevin Morris Jones John Pughe Roberts 

Eirwyn Williams  

 
 

Llais Gwynedd (1) 
 

Councillor 
 

Alwyn Gruffydd 
 
 

Gwynedd United Independents (1) 
 

Councillor 
Vacant Seat - Gwynedd United Independents 

 
 

Aelodau Ex-officio / Ex-officio Members 
Chair and Vice-Chair of the Council 

 
 

Other Invited Member 
 

Councillor Mair Rowlands, Cabinet Member - The Welsh Language 
 

 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest 

 
 

3.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 

 

 To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman 
for consideration 

 

 

4.   MINUTES 
 

4 - 6 

 The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this 
committee held on 12 October 2017 be signed as a true record  (attached) 

 

 

5.   REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER - THE WELSH LANGUAGE 
 
 

 

   
6.   GWYNEDD COUNCIL'S LANGUAGE STRATEGY 

 
7 - 8 

 An update on the timetable and a presentation.  

 
 

7.   GWYNEDD SECONDARY SECTOR LANGUAGE STRATEGY 
 
 

9 - 38 

   
8.   AN INTRODUCTION TO 'HUNANIAITH' 

 
 

 

   
9.   GRIEVANCES 

 
 

 No grievances to report.  

 
 

10.   ANY OTHER MATTERS 
 
 

 

   
 
 
 
 
 



LANGUAGE COMMITTEE, 12.10.17 

 

1 

 

 

LANGUAGE COMMITTEE, 12.10.17 
 

 
Present:   Councillor Alwyn Gruffydd (Chair) 
   Councillor Cai Larsen (Vice-chair)  
 
Councillors:  Alan Jones Evans, Aled Evans, Judith Humphreys, Charles W. Jones, Elin Walker 
Jones, Elwyn Jones, Eric M. Jones, Kevin Morris Jones, John Pughe Roberts, Eirwyn Williams 
and Elfed Williams.  
 
Also in attendance:  Councillor Mair Rowlands (Cabinet Member - Welsh Language) 
 
Corporate Support: Janet Roberts (Senior Manager, Corporate Support), Gwenllian Williams 
(Welsh Language Services Manager) and Ann Roberts (Member Support Officer). 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
 Councillor Elwyn Edwards. 
 
2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 
 No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present. 
 
3. URGENT ITEMS 
 
 No urgent matters were received. 
 
4. MINUTES 

 
The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee held on 4 July 2017 
as a true record. 
 

5. REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER - THE WELSH LANGUAGE 
 

Submitted – the verbal report of the Cabinet Member - Welsh Language, detailing recent 
developments in the field, including the following: 

 

 An event in Llandudno, White Paper Consultation - Striking the Right Balance:  
Proposals for the Welsh Language Bill.  It was noted that Alun Davies, the Minister 
with responsibility for the Welsh language, was in attendance. It was reported that 
the consultation's emphasis was on the Government's preference to abolish the role 
of the Welsh Language Commissioner and to establish a Welsh Language 
Commission. 

 The work of forming a new Gwynedd Language Strategy was ongoing. The intention 
was to consult on the draft Strategy during November/December.   

 Extending the language charter to secondary schools through the medium of the 
Secondary Sector Language Strategy. 

 Supplementary Planning Guidance - work was ongoing on the guidelines.  
 

 

RESOLVED to note the content of the report. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



LANGUAGE COMMITTEE, 12.10.17 

 

2 

 

 
6. RESPONSE TO THE GOVERNMENT'S WHITE PAPER CONSULTATION DOCUMENT - 

STRIKING THE RIGHT BALANCE: PROPOSALS FOR THE WELSH LANGUAGE BILL. 
 

Submitted – the report of the Cabinet Member for the Welsh Language, which presented 
the Language Unit's draft response to the Government's consultation on its White Paper:  
Striking the Right Balance: Proposals for the Welsh Language Bill. It was explained that the 
Government's consultation was to consider changes to the Welsh Language Measure and 
the way the Standards were set and implemented, with the aim of simplifying the process. 
 
It was noted that the process had been a system of heavy bureaucracy and this change 
towards a system that would promote and facilitate, and encourage change by nurturing 
good will rather than enforcement was welcomed. 
 
The matters on the paper's objective were submitted in the summary, as well as the 
response by The Welsh Language Services Manager. It was noted that there were gaps in 
the information submitted in the Government's paper, and that there was a need to 
understand more before being able to give a definite judgement on a few matters. It was 
reported that there was representation in an open consultation event with the Welsh 
Government's Minister who is responsible for the Welsh language, and that there would be 
another meeting on 13 October specifically for officers. 
 
The members were guided through the overview document, from Part 1 to Part 5. 
 
It was noted that the emphasis when discussing the strategic fields that the Government 
are responsible for was part 1 in the field of Education, and that there was not enough 
definitive attention on other fields such as planning and the economy and tourism, or on 
other fields where there was a potential to influence the use of language.   
 
The different options were discussed and considered, whilst outlining the possible options 
for a new structure and where the various functions and responsibilities would sit. 
 
Concern was expressed for the option that was favoured by the Government of establishing 
a Commissioner, and for the lack of clear information in the paper on different aspects.  
 
The need for the new body to have as much independence as possible was emphasised, 
and that there was a need to emphasise the need to collaborate rather than work separately 
in the Council's response to the White Paper.  
 
The importance of rooting individuals' rights in the Measure was discussed, although the 
Government had said that this was impossible. The need for people to have assurance that 
their linguistic needs were respected was discussed, and the argument that this could only 
be achieved by imposing a legal right. 
 

  
RESOLVED to accept the draft response of the Language Unit to the Government's 
consultation on its White Paper:  Striking the Right Balance: proposals for a Welsh 
Language Bill. 

 
 
7. THE LANGUAGE COMMITTEE'S WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 Submitted - the report of the Welsh Language Services Manager, and the members were 

reminded of the confirmation from the Senior Solicitor - Corporate of the Language 
Committee's remit at the previous meeting. 

Page 5



LANGUAGE COMMITTEE, 12.10.17 

 

3 

 

 
A member asked how the Language Committee could supervise the implementation of the 
language policy and compliance with the Language Standards if the Committee did not 
scrutinise this. A robust work programme must be ensured. 

 
 RESOLVED to accept the report and the Work Programme. 
 
 
8. GRIEVANCES AND INVESTIGATIONS 
 
 Submitted - the report of the Welsh Language Services Manager.   
 

It was noted that a long and burdensome investigation into the possible failure to comply 
when providing swimming lessons had come to an end by the Language Commissioner.  It 
was reported that the Commissioner had judged that the Council had failed to comply with 
Standard 81, and that the Language Unit was considering how to respond to the 
Commissioner's request to take action. The examples of possible implementation methods 
that could be used to promote and advertise Welsh medium swimming lessons were noted, 
and the need to be very careful when wording adverts was discussed. 
 
 
In response to a member's observation that some members of staff could speak Welsh but 
spoke English with each other, it was reported that the Council provided support for staff to 
strengthen their Welsh language skills. It was reported that the Council had been working 
with the Leisure staff to improve the situation and it was agreed that linguistic habits that 
had long been established would take time to change. It was noted that an officer from the 
Leisure Department was responsible for observing swimming lessons and that much 
background work had taken place to support Leisure staff. 
 
It was explained that both grievances that had been received since the previous meeting 
involved the Council's recruiting policy and the need to have Welsh language skills to apply 
for posts. It was noted that the grievances did not go into detail on which posts the 
individuals had applied for. 
 
RESOLVED to note the content of the report. 

 
 
9. SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE 
 

Submitted – an oral update by the Welsh Language Services Manager on the work on the 
Supplementary Planning Guidance. The members were reminded that they had been 
invited to a joint informal briefing session with the Communities Scrutiny Committee on 22 
September, where there had been an opportunity to discuss the guidance with the Welsh 
Language Services and planning officers. It was reported that the work of drawing up the 
Supplementary Guidance was in the pipeline, and the Members were reminded of the 
intention to submit a draft report to the Communities Scrutiny Committee at the beginning 
of November. It was noted that the Language Committee and its Members would be 
included in the process of contributing towards, and scrutinising, the guidance at the 
request of the Communities Scrutiny Committee, and jointly with equivalent committees at 
Anglesey County Council.   
 
RESOLVED to note the content of the oral report. 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 10:30am and concluded at 11:55am.  

Page 6



 

MEETING:  

 

LANGUAGE COMMITTEE  

DATE: 

 

27 February 2018 

TITLE: 

 

Gwynedd Language Strategy 

 

AUTHOR: 

 

Gwenllian Williams   

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

To give the members an update on the development of the 

Strategy  

 

 

1. Background  

1.1 In accordance with Standard 145 (Welsh Language Standards, Welsh Language Measure (wales) 

2011), we have a statutory obligation to publish a language strategy that explains how we intend 

to promote and encourage the use of the Welsh language in the county.  

1.2 This strategy must contain, amongst other things, a target for increasing or maintaining the 

number of Welsh speakers within the county. 

1.3 Gwynedd already has a language strategy, and the current one has been operational since 2014.  

That strategy was developed and published by hunaniaith, the language initiative (Menter Iaith) 

for Gwynedd, and the Council was the main partner.  Hunaniaith has been primarily responsible 

for the implementation of that strategy.  

1.4 The new strategy will be lead by Gwynedd Council, and all departments will be expected to 

contribute to it’s implementation, as well as external partners.  The strategy will also reflect the 

commitments made in relation to the Welsh language in the Gwynedd Council Plan and the 

Gwynedd and Mon Well-being Plan.  

2. Summary of the work so far:   

2.1 A workshop was held with members of the Language Committee on the 12th of October 2017 to 

discuss ideas and priorities of the Strategy.  A workshop was also held with officers from 

Hunaniaith.  

2.2 As it is vitally important that the Language Strategy reflects and complements the priorities in 

other strategic plans currently being developed by the Council we decided to review the dates 

for the consultation and completion of the strategy, and moved the consultation period forward 

from January 2018 to spring 2018.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



2.3 A draft strategy has been written on the basis of the above workshops, and taking into 

consideration other strategic plans.  

 

3. Next steps  

3.1 The draft will be presented to the Cabinet on the 13th of March for approval for public 

consultation.  

3.2 The consultation process will be held which will include sessions with the Language Committee, 

heads of services internally and representatives from external partners and community groups.  

 

We ask that the members accept the above update on the development of the Strategy and offer 

any observations.  

 

Page 8



 

MEETING: 

 

LANGUAGE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 

 

27 February 2018 

TITLE: 

 

Gwynedd Secondary Sector Language Strategy  

AUTHOR: 

 

Debbie Anne Williams Jones   

(Education Officer) 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

Introducing Gwynedd Secondary Sector Language Strategy 

following its adoption by the Cabinet on 26 October 2018 

 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

1.1  The purpose of this project is to ensure firm progression and to build on the success of the 

pioneering Language Charter project which is operational in Gwynedd's primary schools, and 

which has now been rolled out nationally. At the request of Welsh Government, following 

the positive reports about the success of the Charter in Gwynedd, permission was granted to 

use Gwynedd's expertise and good practice to extend the project to other areas in Wales. 

1.2  To ensure firm progression of the Primary Language Charter, and to continue to improve our 

young people's Welsh language skills, the Secondary Sector Language Strategy was 

developed to provide clear guidance on how to plan intervention to improve awareness and 

increase the use of the language among young people in the secondary sector. 

 

2. CONSULTATIONS THAT TOOK PLACE BEFORE ADOPTING THE SECONDARY SECTOR 
LANGUAGE STRATEGY 
 

2.1  The Secondary Sector Language Strategy was submitted to the Secondary Sector Strategic 

Planning Group on a number of occasions in 2017 during the process of creating the 

document. Also, a draft version was submitted to the Group for observations on 21 

September 2017, in which all headteachers supported the Secondary Sector Language 

Strategy.  

2.2  A presentation was given to the Language Committee on 28 February 2017 on the main 

objectives of the Secondary Sector Language Strategy. 

2.3  The Secondary Sector Language Strategy was brought before the Education and Economy 

Scrutiny Committee on 26 September, 2017, and the observations received from the 

scrutineers have already been incorporated into the final version of the Secondary Sector 

Language Strategy.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



 

3. GWYNEDD SECONDARY SECTOR LANGUAGE STRATEGY 

3.1  The Gwynedd Secondary Sector Language Strategy was adopted by the Cabinet on 26 

October 2017. 

3.2  The Strategy focuses on the Welsh language and on Education, and includes curricular 

elements as well as social use of the language. There are four main fields to which the 

Strategy attempts to respond: 

 Welsh as a first language 

 Second Language Welsh 

 The Welsh Language as a medium 

 Social Use of Welsh 
 

3.3  The context and direction are based on a number of key policy documents, and it is 

acknowledged that a number of plans are already operational in these fields in a number of 

schools in Gwynedd and beyond, namely: 

 Strategic Plan – Welsh in Education 

 Welsh-Medium Education Scrutiny Investigation Report 

 Alun Charles' Study Report  

 Secondary Schools Language Practices Support Project (PCAI)  

 Gwynedd Language Strategy 2014-2017 

 Trywydd Report - Increasing the social use of the Welsh language among children and young 
people of Gwynedd's secondary schools. 

 Cymraeg 2050 

 A framework for increasing the use of Welsh by children and young people. 

 Donaldson Review 'Successful Future': 
 Recommendation numbers 21-30 - The Welsh Language 
 Recommendation 62 - Ownership  

 
A copy of the Secondary Sector Language Strategy is included in Appendix 1. 

 

4. GWYNEDD SECONDARY SECTOR LANGUAGE STRATEGY COORDINATOR  

4.1  Since April 2017, a Coordinator was appointed on secondment from the Secondary Sector 

Language Centre in Porthmadog - a person who has expertise and credibility among the 

heads of secondary schools, and has the ability to convince and challenge accordingly - to 

lead the Secondary School Language Strategy.  

4.2  The following has been achieved since the Coordinator's appointment: 

 forming the Secondary Sector Language Strategy jointly with a working group of 
Gwynedd secondary school headteachers; 

 a unique action plan has been formed by every secondary school in response to the 
objectives of the Language Strategy;  

 meetings and discussions between the Coordinator and staff at a number of 
secondary schools have been held; 

Page 10



 a brand new partnership has been established with hunaniaith to respond 
specifically to aims within the strategy, namely:  

 young people 
 the school and the community  

 a secondary sector language web questionnaire has been created, and Year 7 pupils 
are currently using it as a baseline; 

 pilot plans are in operation in Tywyn High School and Ysgol Friars. 
 

 

5. NEXT STEPS 

5.1  Delivering the vision and objectives of the Gwynedd Secondary Sector Language Strategy has 

been included in the Council Plan for 2018-2023. Forming and implementing the 

requirements of the Secondary Sector Language Strategy is a direct response to the call from 

the county's primary and secondary schools, along with Elected Members to see succession 

to the primary schools Language Charter, ensuring further progress in the social and 

curricular use of the Welsh language among young people.   

5.2  Over the next three years, the Coordinator will be responsible for: 

 Further supporting the 14 secondary schools to implement the main priorities of the 
Strategy 

 Continuing to implement the language web with the young people 

 Create and implement comprehensive training programmes for secondary teachers 
in the methodologies of bilingual teaching and learning 

 Further promote the value and advantages and usefulness of bilingualism in order to 
strengthen the pupils' incentive to develop into people who are fluent in both 
languages. 

 Create and implement effective arrangements to monitor the implementation of the 
strategy. 

 

6. RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1  Members are asked to: 

 discuss the Secondary Sector Language Strategy  

 accept the content of the report and the next steps. 

 

 

 

Page 11



 

0 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GWYNEDD SECONDARY SECTOR 
LANGUAGE STRATEGY  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 12



 

1 
 

FOREWORD 

Since the launch of the Welsh Language Charter in Gwynedd, pioneering work has taken 
place in our primary schools to influence children's social use of Welsh.  In order to ensure 
firm succession for the Charter, it is our pleasure to introduce the Secondary Sector 
Language Strategy which will provide clear guidance to our secondary schools about the 
techniques to change language practices and the different ways of influencing the social 
language of pupils within and outside the school.  

This Strategy was created under the guidance of Carys Lake, Leader of the Gwynedd 
Secondary Language Centre and with the co-operation of a working group of secondary 
heads and deputies and Gwynedd Council officers.  The working group represented a 
range of secondary schools which vary in terms of geographical locations, size, 
background and language context.   

Secondary learners from different linguistic backgrounds provided valuable and 
enthusiastic input to the Strategy, including native Welsh-speakers, fluent learners and 
more basic learners.  These visits to groups of pupils was an opportunity to discuss all 
sorts of ideas. The infectious enthusiasm of these pupils left a particular impression. 

Planning and implementing this Strategy effectively will ensure consistent high standard 
action to promote informal oral Welsh by learners in our secondary schools. It addresses 
and gets to grips with those challenges in the field including the impact and influence of 
factors such as social media and global commercial influence.  It sets an agreed clear 
vision and includes clear action routes which include accountability to delivering that 
vision. 

In order to implement this Strategy, it is essential that all the stakeholders, including 
schools, teaching and administrative staff, Gwynedd Council Elected Members, parents 
and pupils not only subscribe to it but also embrace it as a tool which will ensure that 
Gwynedd leads the way in terms of contributing to realising Welsh Government's vision 
of a million Welsh-speakers. 

Gwynedd Council is committed to supporting Welsh Government's strategy to reach the 
aim of a million Welsh-speakers by 2050 ensuring that there are opportunities in every 
stage of an individual's life to learn Welsh and to learn through the medium of Welsh.  As 
part of the effort to reach that aim, Gwynedd Council was asked specifically to collaborate 
with Welsh Government to disseminate the practices of the Primary Language Charter 
throughout Wales.  It is, therefore, exciting to announce that Gwynedd Council has 
developed a Secondary Sector Language Strategy as an effective planning tool, building 
on the success of the Primary Language Charter, to lead to further increase in the pupils' 
social and curricular use of Welsh. 

 

Gareth Thomas, 
Cabinet Member for Education 

 

Page 13



 

2 
 

CONTENTS 

 
 

 1. Foreword 
 
 

 2. Cymraeg 2050 
 
 

 3. Gwynedd Language Strategy 
 

 

 4. Background and context 
 
 

 5. Gwynedd Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
 
 

 6. The Gwynedd Primary Schools Welsh Language Charter 
 
 

 7. Preparing the ground in the Secondary Sector 
  

 

 8. Implementing the Gwynedd Secondary Sector Language Strategy 
 
 

 9. Vision 
 

 

 10. Objectives 

 Objective 1: Leadership and Expectations 

 Objective 2: Ethos 

 Objective 3: Young People 

 Objective 4: Training 

 Objective 5: The Role of Language Departments 

 Objective 6: Curricular experiences 

 Objective 7: Bridge learners 

 Objective 8: The School and the Community 
 
 

 11. Monitoring arrangements 
 
 

 12. Appendices 

Page 14



 

3 
 

CYMRAEG 2050 

Cymraeg 2050 is the most recent policy document by Welsh Government for the Welsh 

Language, and it was published in 2017. The Government’s vision is to create a million 

Welsh speakers by the year 2050, and the Government believes that there are two main 

methods of achieving this goal, namely: 

 transmitting the Welsh Language from one generation to the next 

 developing and sustaining skills through education and training.  

Setting a long-term target reflects the fact that activity aimed at increasing the number 

of speakers does not happen overnight: Language planning is a long-term endeavour. 

As well as achieving a million Welsh speakers by 2050, the Welsh Government has 

states the following overarching targets for the strategy:  

 The number of Welsh speakers to reach 1 million by 2050. 

 The percentage of the population that speak Welsh daily, and can speak more     

        than just a few words of Welsh, to increase  from 10 per cent in 2013-15) to 20    

        per cent by 2050. 

In addition, the Welsh Government has identified three strategic themes in order to 

realise their vision by 2050, namely:  order to realise this vision, the Welsh Government 

has identified the need to take action under the three themes and also understand the 

interdependencies between them.   

In addition, Welsh Government has identified three strategic themes to deliver its vision 

by 2050, namely: 

1. Increasing the number of Welsh speakers 

2. Increasing the use of Welsh 

3. Creating favourable conditions – infrastructure and context  

The three themes are interdependent, and therefore also the aims under each theme: 

 

Page 15



 

4 
 

 

  

Page 16



 

5 
 

GWYNEDD LANGUAGE STRATEGY 

This Strategy’s Vision is: 

 To see the Welsh Language thriving in Gwynedd 

Through the Strategy the following experiences are sought to be realized: 

 Children, young people and families appreciating the Language and using the 
Welsh Language in all aspects of their lives. 

 The Welsh language being a natural medium within the communities of 
Gwynedd and an increase in the numbers using the Welsh Language regularly 

 Welsh communities empowered to support the Language and the decline within 
certain communities being slowed down/prevented 

 Services in Wales are broadly available in the Welsh language and are being used 
easily and without impediment 

 The Welsh Language safeguarded as the Language of work and all workers having 
the opportunity and ability to use the Welsh Language in their work.  

 The Welsh language being integrated naturally in economic, housing and 
planning schemes locally and nationally. 

 Confidence, positive attitude and good awareness of the Welsh language and its 
use and value in all parts of life in the County. 
 

A new version of the Gwynedd Language Strategy is about to be published. The new 
strategy will incorporate priorities within Cymraeg 2050, the Gwynedd Well-Being Plan, 
the Council’s Strategic Plan, as well as the objectives of the Gwynedd Secondary Sector 
Language Strategy. 

Page 17



 

6 
 

BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT 

The Census is the main source of data for analysing the current position of the Welsh 
Language. The results of the 2011 Census disclosed that 562,000, (or 19%) of the 
population of Wales can speak Welsh. This total reflects a reduction since the 2001 
Census, which was the first National survey to record an increase in the number and 
percentage of the population who could speak Welsh, with the numbers having risen 
from 508,100, (or 18.7%) in 1991, to 582,000, (or 20.8%) in 2001. 

The 2011 Census shows a reduction in the number of Welsh-speakers in 18 of the 22 
counties of Wales, with this decline at its highest in the Western counties of Anglesey, 
Gwynedd, Ceredigion, and Carmarthenshire, as the following table illustrates:  

COUNTY 2001 2011 CHANGE 

 NO % NO % NO % 

Gwynedd 77,846 69% 77,000 65.4% -846 -3.6 

Anglesey  38,839 60.1% 38,568 57.2% -352 -2.9 

Ceredigion 37,918 52.0% 34,964 47.3% -2,954 -4.7 

Carmarthenshire 84,196 50.3% 78,048 43.9% -6,148 -6.4 

 

In addition, there was a growth of 153,000 in the population of Wales between 2001 
and 2011, and the majority of this growth can be attributed to inward migration. 
Between 2001 and 2011, Gwynedd saw an increase of 4,700, (or 4%) in its population. 
Despite the increase in its population, Gwynedd remains the county with the highest 
percentage of Welsh speakers, and the Language is at the heart of everyday life here. 

The 2011 Census shows that the percentage of people who can speak Welsh varies 
significantly across the county, with Llanrug (87.8%) and the Peblig ward in Caernarfon 
(87.4%) providing the highest percentage. The percentages are much lower in the 
Bangor area (36.4%) and in the coastal areas of Meirionnydd, such as Aberdyfi (35.5%). 
Despite this, Welsh-speakers represent at least 30% of the permanent population in all 
but two of Gwynedd Council’s electoral wards. The two exceptions are the Menai 
(18.6%) and Deiniol (22.8%) wards, which are both in Bangor.  

 

Page 18



 

7 
 

 

The 2011 Census also suggests signs of change in the language’s traditional heartlands, 
with the most prominent changes taking place in those communities where over 70% of 
the population are able to speak Welsh.  

Having previously decreased from 61 to 42 between 1991 and 2001, the number of 
electoral ward sin Gwynedd in which over 70% of the population could speak Welsh had 
fallen further to 39 by 2011. According to the 2011 Census, the three ward sin which the 
number of Welsh speakers fell to below 70% between 2001 and 2011 are: Felinheli, 
Dolbenmaen and Dolgellau (South). 

A change in the age structure of the population in Gwynedd has been seen between 
2001 and 2011 also, with a reduction in the percentage of children and young people in 
the 0-15 age group as the following table shows: 

AGE CHANGE 

0-15 -7.7% 

16-64 +4.6% 

65+ +13.9% 

 
 
According to the 2011 Census, there are 16,866 children and young people 3-15 years 
old living in Gwynedd, which reflects 14.3% of the whole population. Of these, 1,997 or 
73% of 3-4 year old children are able to speak Welsh and 13, 038 or 92% of 5-15 year old 
children are able to speak Welsh. 

The above data indicates the success of the Gwynedd Education Language Policy to 
develop language skills amongst young people. However, the Census cannot tell us much 
use is mad of the Welsh language on a daily basis outside of the school gates. 

 

Page 19



 

8 
 

GWYNEDD WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN 

The Education Department’s Language Policy sets the ambitious objective of ensuring that 
all pupils in the county possess appropriate language skills in Welsh and English, to enable 
them to become full members of the bilingual community to which they belong. This 
matches the principal objective of the Welsh Strategic Plan namely to ensure the 
development of Welsh as a subject and learning medium  from pre-school age onwards 
and promote our children and young people’s use of Welsh as a social language.   

The vision is to ensure that children and young people achieve the highest standards so 
as to maintain the language, culture and economy locally.   
 
In order to realise this vision, there are seven outcomes in the Gwynedd Welsh in 
education Strategic Plan, namely:  

1. More seven-year-old children being taught through the medium of Welsh 
2. More learners continuing to improve their Language skills on transfer from 

primary to secondary school 
3. More students aged 14-16 studying for qualifications through the medium of 

Welsh 
4. More students aged 14-19 studying subjects through the medium of Welsh, in 

schools, colleges and work-based learning. 
5. More students with advanced skills in Welsh 
6. Welsh medium provision for learners with additional learning needs (ALN) 
7. Workforce planning and continuing professional development  

 

Outcome 2: More learners continuing to improve their Language skills on transfer from 
primary to secondary school 

Gwynedd has four main objectives to achieve this outcome: 
 

 Ensure cross-county consistency through ensuring that every pupil who has achieved 
level 3+ in Welsh at the end of KS2 continues with Welsh as First Language in Y7 and 
receives a Welsh as First Language assessment at the end of KS3, and thus increasing 
the % assessed in Welsh as First Language at the end of KS3.   

 Improve progression at KS3 to have a positive impact on the % who progress to sit 
GCSE examination in Welsh as first language.   

 Every school to use the language cohorts for language planning for use of Welsh as a 
learning medium so as to ensure continuity or improvement in language cohort 
amongst individual pupils.  

 Further strengthen the role of the Primary Language Co-ordinators and Secondary 
Language Co-ordinators in language planning and follow-up planning.  
 

The table below shows the percentage of pupils that have achieved level 3+ at the end 
of KS2: 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Level 3+ 95.0% 95.0% 95.1% 96.8% 96.9% 97.4% 98.3% 

Page 20



 

9 
 

 

The data in the table above can be compared with the following table that shows the 
percentage of pupils that are assessed in Welsh First Language at the end of KS3: 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

GWYNEDD 81.7% 83.0% 86.1% 82.5% 81.2% 83.2% 83.7% 

  
A reduction in the percentage is seen over each of the years. 

 

Outcome 3: More students aged 14-16 studying for qualifications through the medium 
of Welsh 

Outcome 4: More students aged 14-19 studying subjects through the medium of Welsh, 
in schools, colleges and work-based learning. 

Gwynedd has seven main objectives to achieve this outcome: 

 Ensure that all Gwynedd Secondary Schools respond to the Learning and Skills Bill 
requirements and have utilised collaborative partnerships. 

 Further increase percentage of pupils who continue to study their subjects in Welsh 
or bilingually at KS4 up to sitting external examinations.    

 Collaborate with the main stakeholders to ensure that the provision provides access 
to bilingual provision across the vocational subjects and Welsh Baccalaureate at KS4.  

 Ensure that collaborative vocational courses funded through the 14-19 Network grant 
are available in Welsh/bilingually [including any courses provided by the Colleges]. 

 Ensure that the Partnership Groups and 14-19 Network Quality Sub-group monitors 
language progression in the courses provided.  

 Monitor registrations data for external examinations through the medium of Welsh 
from every establishment (including Vocational partnership courses at the Colleges).  
Set Progress Targets for every partnership establishment/course.  

 Monitor the language medium of KS4 and KS5.   
 

Similarly, the aim will be to ensure that every pupil who has achieved level 3+ in Welsh 
at the end of KS2 receives an assessment in Welsh as a first language at the end of KS4. 
Though this percentage is high compared with the rest of Wales, there is some way to go 
to achieve the county's aim in full, as the following table shows: 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

% sitting Welsh first 

language 

78.3% 78.6% 78.7% 80.8% 85.0% 80.6% 76.3% 

%A*-C 70.9% 74.4% 76.4% 72.6% 73.3% 78.8% 76.3% 

 
The information about language cohorts will also be of assistance for secondary schools 
to plan linguistically to use the Welsh language as a medium for learning. The following 
table shows the percentage of Year 11 pupils who are studying two or more 
qualifications through the medium of Welsh: 

Page 21



 

10 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

% who are studying two 

or more qualifications 

through the medium of 

Welsh 

78.1% 78.8% 79.1% 82.0% 87.5% 82% 79.4% 

 
The following table shows the percentage of Year 11 pupils who are studying five or 
more qualifications through the medium of Welsh: 
 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

% who are studying five 

or more qualifications 

through the medium of 

Welsh 

60.8% 64.7% 67% 71.3% 73.3% 74.9% 69.4% 

 
The following table shows that the percentage of pupils in Gwynedd who are studying 
Second Language Welsh courses and who sit a Second Language Welsh exam at the end 
of KS4 is relatively small: 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

% sitting Second 

Language Welsh at KS4 

17.6% 16.5% 15.2% 15.1% 15.1% 16.7% 16.7% 

 

Outcome 6: Welsh medium provision for learners with additional learning needs (ALN) 

Gwynedd has three main objectives to achieve this outcome: 

 Continue to provide Welsh medium and bilingual education for ALN pupils, through 
every stage in their education journey.    

 Plan around the needs of children and young people and their families.   

 Implement Gwynedd and Isle of Anglesey ALN and Inclusion Strategy. 
 

All pupils with Additional Learning Needs have access to Welsh medium services in 

Gwynedd. Welsh medium and bilingual provisions and services are available for the entire 

range and variety of SEN.    

 
Outcome 7: Workforce planning and continuing Professional development 

Gwynedd has four main objectives to achieve this outcome: 

 Through the Welsh Medium and Capacity Building Network (cross-authority strategy 
group), continue to collaborate with Bangor University to ensure that the Welsh 
Sabbatical Scheme is strategically used to meet schools requirements. 

 Strengthen staff’s language profile at specific schools.  

Page 22



 

11 
 

 Develop the workforce Welsh language skills.    

 Continue to follow the Authority’s policy when placing advertisements stating that it 
is a requirement that post holders can communicate in Welsh and English to an 
appropriate level in the post.  
  

When advertising posts, the Authority states that post holders should be able to 

communicate in Welsh and English to an appropriate level in the post.  

The Authority ensures that staff who need to increase and improve on their language 
skills receive encouragement and support to develop their bilingual skills up to teaching 
standard.    

The Authority also promotes Continuous Professional Development that supports 
training for secondary teachers in the methodologies of bilingual teaching and learning, 
utilizing examples of existing good practice in a number of schools and recent research 
when doing so. 

 
To accompany the Strategic Plan - Welsh in Education, the Services Scrutiny Committee 
held a Welsh-medium Education Scrutiny Investigation, and submitted a series of 
recommendations based on evidence collected as part of their research to the attention 
of the Cabinet Member for Education for implementation.  

Similarly, the Education Department commissioned a report by Alun Charles on 
strengthening and reconciling the implementation of the Gwynedd Education Language 
Policy, together with what exactly is meant by bilingual teaching and learning where that 
is underway.  

Several recommendations from these reports have already been delivered through the 
Gwynedd Welsh in Education Strategic Plan. Secondary School heads have also come 
together to ensure better clarity in the way they define their schools linguistically and 
the results of that work can be seen in Appendix 1. 

The aim of this Secondary Sector Language Strategy, therefore, is to bring the plans and 
recommendations from those reports together in a coherent way, in the context of the 
curricular element of the Strategy. 

 

Page 23



 

12 
 

GWYNEDD PRIMARY SCHOOLS WELSH LANGUAGE CHARTER  

We know that for the Welsh language to survive in Gwynedd it has to be a current and 
relevant medium for children and young people in their everyday lives. In order to 
achieve this, and as a result of collaboration between Hunaniaith, Gwynedd Education 
Department and the Welsh Government, the Gwynedd Primary Schools Welsh Language 
Charter was developed. 

The aim of the Charter is to promote children’s social use of the Welsh Language; in a 
nutshell encourage and compel the children of Gwynedd to speak Welsh. The Charter is 
now in action in all Gwynedd primary schools. 

The Charter was developed as a result of the data and evidence collected as part of the 
work on the Linguistic Impact Assessment of the Gwynedd Primary Schools 
Reorganisation Scheme in 2008. In the report, details were given of the language used in 
the classroom, in the canteen and in the school yard in all Gwynedd primary schools.  

The Gwynedd Primary Schools Welsh Language Charter has been operational since its 
launch at the C-Ffactor conference in Nant Gwrtheyrn in 2011, and the process of 
validating the schools' achievement in meeting the requirements of the Charter’s 
bronze, silver and gold awards has already been implemented. The Charter’s main 
objective is to increase children's social use of Welsh by means of an action plan and a 
series of criteria that schools must implement in order to take a step towards obtaining 
an award for establishing and embedding strong and positive linguistic practices among 
the children.  

In order to support the schools to achieve the Charter’s requirements, and implement 
schemes that will encourage children to speak Welsh and nurture positive attitudes 
towards the Language, a new post was established in 2013, jointly between the Welsh 
Government and Gwynedd Council, to co-ordinate the work.  

In order to assess to what extent the Charter delivers its aim of getting children to speak 
Welsh, a language web was developed, which is an on-line questionnaire which asks a 
series of questions about the children's language practices. The language web is held 
twice a year, and the following table shows the percentage of KS2 pupils who have 
noted in the language web that they use Welsh on the school-yard.1: 

 AT ALL 

TIMES 

OFTEN SOMETIMES VERY LITTLE NEVER 

Gwynedd 41.2 27.8 19.7 7.3 3.9 

Bangor 27.6 32.9 26.7 9.4 3.4 

Caernarfon 60.6 24.1 11.2 2.8 1.3 

Dolgellau 12.5 17.0 32.1 19.9 18.6 

Ffestiniog 44.2 32.9 17.7 3.6 1.6 

                                                           

1 Gwynedd Well-being Assessment 

Page 24



 

13 
 

Llŷn 44.5 29.8 16.6 6.0 3.0 

Penllyn 56.5 21.5 17.3 2.1 2.6 

Porthmadog 39.5 32.4 20.0 6.1 2.0 

Tywyn 6.5 19.6 33.9 25.6 14.3 

 

As a result of the success of the Language Charter in Gwynedd, that Charter is now a 
national scheme funded by Welsh Government through the four Regional Education 
Consortia, with Co-ordinators supporting the work in each one.  

 

Page 25



 

14 
 

PREPARING THE GROUND IN THE SECONDARY SECTOR 

Simultaneously, work was also commissioned to Trywydd, in support of the work of the 
Charter in primary schools via the Council’s Strategic Plan, to carry out an audit of the 
social linguistic habits amongst young people in Gwynedd’s secondary schools.  

This was in response to observations received from young people during the 
consultation process on the Draft Action Plan of the Gwynedd Language Strategy 2010-
2013 that highlighted, that in some areas of Gwynedd Welsh was the medium of 
education only, with insufficient social opportunities for young people to use the 
language beyond schools’ hours.   

Trywydd undertook the research work by visiting every secondary school for an entire 
day in order to hold a whole-school survey. Broad and representative focus groups were 
arranged with all stakeholders of the schools and an electronic quantitative 
questionnaire was carried out with Year 9 pupils in every school.  

In addition to the research days, additional meetings were held during the period of the 
research with Hunaniaith, Primary Schools Language Charter Co-ordinator, community 
leaders in the county (the Urdd, YFC, Youth Service, Leisure Centres) and the Gwynedd 
Council Increasing the Social Use of the Welsh Language Working Group. 

The findings of the work by Trywydd varied greatly between the different schools and 
areas; however, seven main fields were identified for the county-level outcomes, as 
follows: 

 1. The need to define the linguistic nature of the schools and to ensure clarity  
 2. The way in which the schools promote and facilitate the use of the Welsh 

language 
 3. The variances which exist in relation to language use and the curriculum 
 4. Pupils’ use of the language outside the classroom 
 5. The factors which influence the children's language use (the home/family, 

peers, the community, linguistic confidence, language practices) 
 6. Attitudes towards the Welsh language 
 7. The Welsh language outside the school 

Trywydd identified that, apart from those schools where Welsh is completely natural to 
a vast cohort of pupils, in general across the county, social use of Welsh is stronger in 
the most formal contexts where the school's linguistic boundaries and expectations are 
set clearly for everyone, and where they are consistently put to work. Year 9’s 
responses create a picture of the pupils’ social use across the school.  

 
When there are no teachers nearby, which language do you usually speak with your 
friends on the school corridors? 
(Sample: All Gwynedd Year 9 Pupils)  
 

Page 26



 

15 
 

 
 
 

In terms of the number that noted they speak Welsh with their friends on the corridors, 
compared with the all-Gwynedd figure above of 32%, the percentage in 8 of the county's 
schools is higher than this figure, with 65% in one school noting that Welsh is spoken 
among friends on the corridors, and not only because teachers are around.  
 
In terms of the percentage of those who noted that they speak Welsh with their friends 
on the school-yard, compared with the all-Gwynedd figure above of 30%, the percentage 
in 8 of the county's schools is higher than this figure, with 62% in one school noting that 
Welsh is spoken between friends on the school-yard, and not just because teachers are 
around. 
 
When there are no teachers around, which language do you usually speak with your 
friends on the schoolyard? 
(Sample: All Gwynedd Year 9 Pupils)  
 

 
 
 
 

Welsh 

More Welsh than 

English 

More English than 

Welsh 

English 
18% 

33% 33% 

17% 

30% 36% 

17% 
17% 

Welsh 

More Welsh than 

English 

More English than 

Welsh 

English 

Page 27



 

16 
 

The findings of the work by Trywydd, reflect and reiterate what Welsh Government 
identified in Cymraeg 2050, namely the need to: 

 Support speakers as they start to develop their linguistic skills 

 Facilitate their ability and willingness to continue to use Welsh, with their 
families, in their communities and social networks, with their colleagues and 
when using services 

 Equip speakers to make decisions which will help them to use Welsh in the 
future. 

  

Page 28



 

17 
 

IMPLEMENTING THE GWYNEDD SECONDARY SECTOR SCHOOL WELSH LANGUAGE 

STRATEGY 

This Strategy focuses on the Welsh language and Education, and it combines the curricular, 

as well as the social use of the Welsh language. The Strategy aims to respond to four main 

areas, namely: 

 Welsh First language 

 Welsh Second Language 

 Welsh medium provision 

 Social use of the Welsh language by young people. 

The context and the direction of this Strategy is based on many key policy documents, with 

some of the schemes already in operation within secondary schools in Gwynedd and 

beyond, such as: 

 Gwynedd Welsh in Education Strategic Plan.   

 Welsh-Medium Education Scrutiny Investigation Report – Services Scrutiny  
Committee, Gwynedd Council. 

 Study Report by Alun Charles, External Consultant. 

 Secondary Schools Language Practices Support Project (PCAI) - Welsh Government.    

 Gwynedd Language Strategy 2014-2017 - Strategic Field No. 2. Children and Young 
People. 

 Gwynedd Language Strategy Action Plan - getting to grips with national targets at LA 
level.  

 Gwynedd Council Trywydd Report (October 2014) - Increasing the social use of the 
Welsh language among the children and young people of Gwynedd's secondary 
schools. 

 Cymraeg 2050.   

 A framework for increasing the use of Welsh by children and young people. 

 Donaldson Review 'Successful Future':   

 Recommendation nos. 21-30. The Welsh Language. 

 Recommendation no. 62. Local and national ownership. 
 

Therefore the Strategy aims to bring these policy documents together in a cohesive way to 

ensure their clear strategic direction. 

The main elements of this Strategy must be accomplished as an integral part of the mission 

and purposeful planning of each secondary school in Gwynedd. This aim will be 

accomplished through a unique action plan that will be agreed with each school, the 

Strategy’s Co-ordinator, and Gwynedd Education Department. 

The Strategy builds on the success of the Language Charter in the primary schools, and 

ensures a strong link between the objectives of the Charter, and the purposeful planning 

and implementation to meet the requirements of the Strategy in the secondary schools, to 

Page 29



 

18 
 

ensure continuity and continuum. This means that the method of measuring the social use 

of the Welsh language by young people in the secondary schools through the ‘gwe iaith’ 

partially corresponds to the ‘gwe iaith’ used in the primary schools, to ensure continuity and 

continuum as a means of measuring language use. 

In addition, to implement some of the objectives of this Strategy successfully, working in 

partnership with many agencies and organisations will be required, with a key partnership 

to realize the vision and community objectives of this Strategy forseen with Hunaniaith. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



 

19 
 

VISION 
 
Gwynedd Primary Schools Language Charter has now been established and is operational 
in the county's primary schools. It was decided to build on the success of this charter in 
order to ensure appropriate succession in the secondary sector.  When establishing the 
primary charter, several methods to measure the increase in social use of Welsh among 
young people were identified. It is intended to consider using these methods, as well as 
others, in order to measure succession in the secondary sector. 
 
When developing the Gwynedd Secondary Language Charter, consideration was given to 
the fact that Gwynedd Council is one of the Welshest counties in Wales. It has a wide range 
of linguistic contexts which extend from areas which have high percentage of native Welsh-
speakers to the more Anglicised areas. 
 
It is important to use the firm foundations within Gwynedd to ensure that the Council acts 
in a pioneering way to implement Welsh Government's policies in this context, specifically 
the vision to secure a million Welsh-speakers.  
 
The Gwynedd Council Language Strategy also provides a firm foundation to plan a 
Gwynedd Secondary Sector Language Strategy. 
 
Secondary pupils have made a significant contribution to the vision. A strong desire to see 
the Language Strategy being implemented was highlighted. The following quotes 
crystallise some of the messages highlighted: 

“Schools need to promote the fact that being able to speak the oldest language in 
Europe is an important qualification for careers." 

"We are so pleased that emphasis is being placed on Welsh and that the language is 
placed on an equal footing." 

"Thank you for the opportunity to voice our opinions." 

 

Gwynedd Council is fully committed to a system of progressive and excellent secondary 
schools that promote the Welsh language in all aspects of their work. 
 
The aim of the Secondary Sector Language Strategy is to promote social use of Welsh 
among children and young people and to develop it as an effective medium for all aspects 
of a school's life and work. 
 
The Strategy will be an effective planning tool, building on the success of the Primary 
Sector Language Charter, in leading to further progress in the social and curricular use of 
the Welsh language among pupils. 
 
It supports the vision of the Gwynedd Language Strategy to ensure the prosperity of the 
Welsh language. Emphasising the Welsh language will ensure that the children of 
Gwynedd are bilingually proficient and confident and take pride in the additional value 

Page 31



 

20 
 

bestowed upon them from having two languages, that they are able to use both 
languages confidently socially and professionally once they leave school and that they, 
eventually, pass on both languages to the next generation in Gwynedd. 
 
It also contributes to implementing a bilingual strategy by promoting the Welsh language 
and ensuring that it is equal in status and in terms of opportunities.  
Every school will implement the Secondary Sector Language Strategy and will succeed in 
ensuring that all school stakeholders are on-board with this plan. 

 

 

Page 32



 

21 
 

OBJECTIVES. 

Objective 1: Leadership and Expectations2   

Maintaining a high standard of leadership has been a challenge for Gwynedd for some 
years and a review of leadership is one of its priorities in the context of school 
organisation at present. The rationale for this is simple: research shows that the main 
factor when influencing the quality of education in schools is the standard of leadership.  
 
Similarly, recent documentation from Welsh Government involving work in the field of 
leadership and standards of leadership with the implementation of Successful Future, 
conveys the same message once again.  
 
Clearly, therefore, if the Gwynedd Secondary Sector Language Strategy is to succeed, the 
standard and commitments and ownership of the leadership team in schools must be 
strong in favour of it.  
 
It is essential, therefore, that leadership is one of the objectives within the Language 
Strategy, namely:  
 

 Ensuring that Gwynedd Council and the Education Department are committed to 
supporting and challenging schools to implement the Secondary Sector Language 
Strategy. 
 

 Ensuring that the school leadership, governors and senior managers have high 
expectations in terms of implementing the Secondary Sector Language Strategy. 

 

 Ensuring that the workforce, as a result of the leadership provided, also has strong 
expectations and pride in the success of the school in implementing the Secondary 
Sector Language Strategy. Consequently, ensuring that all school stakeholders 
promote the Secondary Sector Language Strategy robustly and take pride in it. 

 

 Ensuring that the school's staffing structure notes clear responsibilities and 
accountability for the implementation of various aspects of school life involving 
the Welsh language. 

 

 Ensuring that every school has a three-year action plan for the Secondary Sector 
Language Strategy which is incorporated within the School Development Plan. This 
plan will promote the aims of the Secondary Sector Language Strategy firmly. 

 
 

                                                           

2 Successful Future, Welsh Government 

Page 33



 

22 
 

Objective 2: Ethos3 

 Ensure that all aspects of everyday life at the school and its community promote 
the Welsh ethos. 

 

 Nurture an awareness of Wales’ cultural and heritage identity among the school 
community. 

 

 Ensure that all aspects of the school's extra-curricular programme recognise and 
promote the Welsh language. 

 

 
Objective 3: Young People4 

Welsh Government's vision is to give a more prominent role to young people to express 
an opinion, and the principle of ensuring that young people are given a central voice in 
the direction of this Strategy, and have an opportunity to influence it and affect its 
direction, and more importantly, take ownership of it, is core to its success. 

In implementing the voice of youth agenda, it is crucial that the Welsh language agenda 
is presented with an exciting, attractive, dynamic, modern image - the language of the 
future. Not an old-fashioned language or a language that belongs to the world of 
literature alone, but a language relevant to social media, exciting music bands and 
presentations of all sorts. 
 
In introducing the Welsh language in this way, and aligning that exciting and energetic 
image with young people's ownership of the agenda, we can ensure that the Secondary 
Sector Language Strategy is one which is owned by everybody: 

It is essential, therefore, that young people is one of the objectives for the Strategy:  

 Setting up a Language Council to ensure that young people's voice is given a 
prominent place in the plans to promote the use of the Welsh language socially. 
 

 Ensuring that the Language Council develops the role of leaders and language 
ambassadors in the school with specific expectations. 
 

 Ensuring that the Language Council holds and promotes Welsh cultural events in 
the school. 

 

 Ensuring that the Language Council takes action to raise awareness about Welsh 
events in the community and in Wales. 

                                                           

3 Gwynedd Education Language Policy, Gwynedd Language Strategy, Strategic Field 2. 

4 Gwynedd Language Strategy, Hunaniaith; PCAI, Informal Language Use Framework, Welsh 

Government. 

Page 34



 

23 
 

 

 Ensuring that the Language Council promotes Welsh history which will ensure that 
young people nurture a feeling of Welsh identity and pride. 
 

 Ensuring that the Language Council plan together to populate the Welsh language 
in social media. 

 

 Ensuring that the Language Council leads and takes ownership of the PCAI plan 
and the Welsh Practices Framework, Welsh Government. 

 

Objective 4: Training5  

The education sector in Wales has a long history of investing substantial financial and 
personnel resources in training and, very recently, Welsh Government has allocated 
funding to the four Education Consortia to develop the education workforce's 
language skills in response to Cymraeg 2050. 
 
If the Secondary Sector Language Strategy in Gwynedd is to succeed, there is a need 
to clearly identify what skills the teachers and other staff in the schools need in order 
to implement the Strategy, and an effective training pack needs to be provided in 
order to up-skill those staff to introduce and implement the Language Strategy 
effectively.  
 
In accordance with the recommendations of Alun Charles' report, collaborate and 
contribute to the Workforce Development Plan (GwE) in order to support staff to: 
 

 develop their Welsh proficiency and nurture their confidence to use it in the 
classroom. 
 

 introduce subjects increasingly and more effectively through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 

 provide effectively for pupils who are Welsh learners or who are in the process of 
crossing the linguistic bridge. 

 

 respond effectively to pupils in order to ensure their fondness and enthusiasm 
towards the language and ensure oral responses in Welsh within lessons. 

 

 have a high awareness and feeling of ownership and pride in the school's Welsh 
provision. 

 

                                                           

5 Cymraeg 2050, Welsh Government;  Gwynedd Welsh in Education Strategic Plan, Outcome 7; 

Workforce Development Plan, GwE. 

Page 35



 

24 
 

Objective 5: Role of Language Departments6 
 
In considering the role of the language departments, it is important that there is 
expertise to be sensitive to the needs of learners, to understand the challenges of 
learning a language and crossing the bridge and to support learners to cross that 
bridge in a positive, enthusiastic and energetic way. It is vital that this takes place and 
is operational within all the schools. In cases when this range of skills is not available, 
training needs to be provided. 
 
Following that, it needs to be noted that the Welsh departments have a wide range of 
responsibilities and recognise the wide range of challenges which face them. Not only 
to train the native Welsh-speakers but train the non-Welsh-speakers as well.  
Therefore, there is a need to be clear regarding the responsibilities and ensure that 
the skills and vision within the Welsh departments themselves, are present when 
implementing the Secondary Sector Language Strategy.  

It is essential, therefore, that core language departments is one of the objectives of 
the Strategy:  

 Celebrating the value of First Language Welsh as an important qualification in 
Gwynedd. 
 

 Implementing expectations for pupils to follow a First Language Welsh 
programme at KS3 which is an effective succession to what was achieved at KS2. 

 

 Implementing expectations for pupils to follow a Welsh First Language 
programme at KS4 which is an effective succession to what was achieved at KS3. 

 

 Ensuring that every pupil respects every language and understanding of language. 
 

 

Objective 6: Curricular Experiences7 

The section on curricular experiences within the Secondary Sector Language Strategy 
bridges the connection between literacy and language skills across the curriculum and 
the need to promote Welsh specifically as a language.  

The Bullock vision, introduced in 1975, is now ancient history, but the crux of that 
vision was that every teacher is a language teacher. 
 
In Wales and in Gwynedd, it has taken a quarter of a century for that mind-set to start 
to take root; and now, there is an increasing awareness of responsibility for literacy 
within subjects across the curriculum. 

                                                           

6 Gwynedd Welsh in Education Strategic Plan, Outcome 2, 3, and 4. 

7 Gwynedd Welsh in Education Strategic Plan, Outcome 2, 3, and 4. 

Page 36



 

25 
 

 
That responsibility needs to be added to specifically, identifying that the Welsh 
language as a language to be promoted, is everyone's responsibility. This vision simply 
involves that combination that every teacher is a language teacher, but in Gwynedd, 
that every teacher is a Welsh language teacher. 
 
The implications of this statement are far-reaching. It involves aspects within the 
Secondary Sector Language Strategy which involve training and learning 
methodologies and a school's methods of working. 

It is essential, therefore, that curricular experiences is one of the objectives for the 
Strategy:  

 Ensuring that every pupil has reading, writing, oral and listening curricular 
experiences through the medium of Welsh at KS3 which build on, are a successor 
to and show progress in the linguistic skills and experiences provided at KS2. 
 

 Ensuring that every pupil has reading, writing, oral and listening curricular 
experiences through the medium of Welsh at KS4 which build on, are a successor 
to and show progress in the linguistic skills and experiences provided at KS3. 

 

 Ensuring an increase in the number of candidates who follow KS5 courses 
specifically or partly through the medium of Welsh by developing the confidence 
of candidates, teachers and leaders.  

 

Objective 7: Bridge Learners8 

The image of crossing a bridge, when discussing language, is essentially one that creates 
a little difficulty in Wales as the common presumption when we talk about 'bridging' 
learners is that the learners will only walk on part of the bridge. The Gwynedd Secondary 
Sector Language Strategy has the opportunity to set that presumption aside. 
 
In Gwynedd's most successful schools, learners can arrive from Eastern Europe in year 8 
and 9 and sit a first language Welsh GCSE and gain high grades in year 11. This involves a 
careful linguistic planning and preparation process and high expectations, and to be clear 
regarding what and where is the end of the bridge.  
 
The challenge for the Gwynedd Secondary Sector Language Strategy is to ensure that 
every learner crosses the bridge and not reach half-way only.  

It is essential, therefore, that learners is one of the objectives for the Strategy:  

 Ensuring that pupils who are on the first language Welsh route, when transferring 
from KS2 to KS3, continue to make further progress on that route.  

                                                           

8 Gwynedd Welsh in Education Strategic Plan, Outcome 2, 3, and 4. 

Page 37



 

26 
 

 

 Ensuring that every secondary school uses the excellent work undertaken with 
learners in the primary as a basis for further robust progress. 

 

 Ensuring that learners and bridge learners cross the bridge, continue to make 
effective progress to master the Welsh language with the aim of studying Welsh 
First Language at GCSE level. 

 

 Ensuring that learners and bridge learners increasingly do their work through the 
medium of Welsh. 

 

 Ensuring effective support for parents of learners ensuring that they support the 
learners' progress. 

 

 Celebrating learners' success 
 

 
Objective 8: The School and the Community9 

The two terms used often in the world of education in Wales, namely responsive action 
and pro-active action, are core to the relationship of the school with the community. 

As we think of working in a responsive way, we will respond to parents who express 
concern that their children are following courses through the medium of Welsh; we will 
respond to parents who express concern regarding the way their children have 
assimilated into a Welsh environment and we will respond to the concerns of pupils 
who, sometimes, find it difficult to familiarise themselves within a brand-new linguistic 
context. 
 
However, in working pro-actively, all those responsive challenges will disappear.  And 
this is probably the answer to ensure a strong connection with the community. 
Schools need to use the Welsh aspects of their communities and reach out in a pro-
active way, constructively and positively, to include the parents and pupils to ensure 
that they see the Welsh language not as a threat, but as a welcoming and safe thing and 
that embracing it and succeeding in it is the key to living in the community and also to 
have a career locally. 
 
Therefore, the emphasis on 'pro-active action' is crucial as we get to grips with this 
aspect.   

It is essential, therefore, that the school and the community is one of the objectives for   
the Strategy:  

 Ensuring that the school promotes the Welsh language in a pro-active way to 
parents and the wider community. 

                                                           

9 Gwynedd Language Strategy, Strategic Field 1 and 3. 

Page 38



 

27 
 

 

 Ensuring that the school promotes the role of the Welsh language as an important 
qualification for careers and promotes opportunities for pupils to have Welsh 
experiences in their involvement with a wide range of employers and external 
agencies. 

 

 Ensuring that the school promotes the advantages of a bilingual education. 
 

 Promoting the use of the Welsh language in extra-curricular activities provided by 
the school staff. 

 

 Ensuring that activities and external agencies such as Careers Wales, youth 
service, leisure service and the Urdd provide experiences which strengthen the 
pupils' experiences in Welsh. 

Page 39



 

28 
 

MONITORING ARRANGEMENTS. 

The following system will be used to monitor the plan:   

 Gwynedd Secondary Schools Language Strategy Co-ordinator: 
- Support every school to create an agreed language review. 
- Support and challenge every school to create a standard language action plan. 
- Support every school to implement the action plan effectively. 
- Provide encouragement, support and training for schools as and when required. 

 

 The Language Council of every Secondary School 
 

 Gwynedd Secondary Schools Language Co-ordinators  
 

 The steering group will continue to have a scrutiny and monitoring role.  
 

 Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee, Gwynedd Council. 
 

 The termly and annual meeting to review the progress that every school has achieved 
within the action plan will be a core part of monitoring arrangements.  

 
 
The following basis will be used for monitoring, identifying what has been achieved, what 
needs more attention for future action and any change in direction and emphasis: 

 

 The quality of the school's action plans and level of challenge. 
 

 Degree of success when completing the action plans for every individual year.  
 

 The opinion of pupil groups in every school. 
 

 The opinion of the steering group and other stakeholders including heads, 
teachers. 

 

 A combination of process success criteria and performance success criteria 
(outcomes) will be used. The main emphasis will be placed on measuring the 
achievement of the outcomes. 

 

Page 40


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	6 GWYNEDD COUNCIL'S LANGUAGE STRATEGY
	7 GWYNEDD SECONDARY SECTOR LANGUAGE STRATEGY
	20170914 GWYNEDD SECONDARY SCHOOL WELSH LANGUAGE STRATEGY -EN - TERFYNOL


